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1st Circuit holds that extradition order need not specify forfeiture. (360) Defendant was extradited from Switzerland on RICO and money laundering charges. He argued that the criminal forfeiture entered against him violated the rule of speciality because it was tantamount to prosecution and conviction for an offense on which extradition was neither sought nor granted. The First Circuit held that a defendant may be subjected to forfeiture even if extradition was not specifically granted for the forfeiture action. Criminal forfeiture is not a free-standing criminal offense nor an element of a racketeering offense under RICO, but an incremental punishment for that conduct. U.S. v. Saccoccia, 58 F.3d 754 (1st Cir. 1995).xe "U.S. v. Saccoccia, 58 F.3d 754 (1st Cir. 1995)."
1st Circuit affirms that forfeiture com​plaint con​tained sufficient partic​ularity. (360) The 1st Circuit affirmed that the gov​ernment's forfeiture com​plaint contained suf​ficient particu​lar​ity to satisfy Rule E(2)(a) of the Supplemen​tal Rules for Certain Admi​ralty and Maritime Claims. The complaint was more than sufficient to support a rea​sonable belief that the government, at trial, could make a probable cause showing that most, if not all, of the de​fendant prop​erty was con​nected to ille​gal drug proceeds. The facts al​leged in the complaint were sufficient to put claimant on notice, and provide him enough informa​tion to allow him to in​vestigate and respond to the complaint. The complaint al​leged that a fugitive from justice, acting under an alias, pur​chased the defen​dant properties with money he derived from traf​ficking of large amounts of controlled sub​stances, as he was not in any other way em​ployed during the time of the purchases. The complaint also alleged that these purchases took place be​tween the years 1985 and 1988. U.S. v. TWP 17 R 4, Certain Real Property in Maine, 970 F.2d 984 (1st Cir. 1992). xe "U.S. v. TWP 17 R 4, Certain Real Property in Maine, 970 F.2d 984 (1st Cir. 1992).  "
1st Circuit rejects forfeiture of prop​erty not specif​ically identified in gov​ernment's com​plaint. (360) The gov​ernment's forfei​ture com​plaint described the defendant prop​erty as 384-390 West Broadway, but made no mention of an abutting parcel, known as 309 Athens St., which claimant purchased from a different seller. Over a year after a for​feiture order was entered against the Broadway property, the dis​trict court granted the gov​ernment's motion to ex​pand the forfei​ture or​der to include the Athens prop​erty. The 1st Circuit re​versed, ruling that the gov​ernment's com​plaint did not describe the Athens prop​erty with suf​ficient particularity. The exact​ing particularity standard ap​plicable to forfei​ture actions is not merely a proce​dural tech​nicality, but is a "significant legal rule de​signed to curb excesses of government power." Here, the government's com​plaint sought to forfeit the Broadway property and nothing more. The claimant was enti​tled to rely on what the complaint indi​cated. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Prop​erty with the Build​ing, Appurtenances, and Improve​ments Known as 384-390 West Broad​way, 964 F.2d 1244 (1st Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Prop​erty with the Build​ing, Appurtenances, and Improvements Known as 384-390 West Broad​way, 964 F.2d 1244 (1st Cir. 1992)."
1st Circuit finds no error in denial of Franks motion chal​lenging forfeiture affidavits. (360) The claimant ar​gued that the govern​ment's forfeiture affidavit contained false state​ments and material omissions entitling him to a hearing un​der Franks v. Delaware, 438 U.S. 154 (1978). The 1st Circuit rejected the argument, holding that many of the alleged flaws in the affidavit appeared to be inno​cent mistakes or at most negligent omissions. More​over, the court held that even if all of the omissions were cor​rected and the alleged false​hoods were dis​regarded, "there still would exist more than enough evidence to estab​lish probable cause." The motion was properly de​nied. U.S. v. Parcels of Land, Etc., Et al., 903 F.2d 36 (1st Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Parcels of Land, Etc., Et al., 903 F.2d 36 (1st Cir. 1990)."
1st Circuit holds forfeiture complaint was stated with suffi​cient particularity. (360) The government alleged in its for​feiture complaint that a certain portion of the de​fendant's prop​erty had been purchased with drug pro​ceeds. The dis​trict court dismissed the complaint be​cause it was not "narrowly tailored to precisely identify the portion of the property" subject to forfeiture. The 1st Circuit reversed. "Whether none, all or only a por​tion of the defendant prop​erty is forfeitable is not de​termined at the pleadings stage, but at trial." The gov​ernment need not meet a more exact​ing standard of proof at the complaint stage than is required at trial. The government's complaint was sufficient because it alleged facts sufficient to establish "a reasonable belief that the government could demonstrate proba​ble cause that the down payment and mortgage payments on the defendant property were traceable, for the most part if not entirely, to illegal drug proceeds." U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property, 900 F.2d 470 (1st Cir. 1990).

xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property, 900 F.2d 470 (1st Cir. 1990)."
1st Circuit holds that in ruling on sufficiency of forfei​ture complaint, court may consider facts in incorpo​rated affi​davit. (360) The claimant argued that the gov​ernment's forfei​ture complaint failed to state with par​ticularity the cir​cumstances from which the government's claim arose. The 1st Circuit disagreed, noting that the complaint specifically incorporated the facts recited in the affidavit which was at​tached to the complaint. The court found no re​quirement that all facts be in the com​plaint it​self. U.S. v. Parcels of Land, Etc., Et al., 903 F.2d 36 (1st Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Parcels of Land, Etc., Et al., 903 F.2d 36 (1st Cir. 1990)."
1st Circuit upholds refusal to hold Franks hearing on for​feiture affidavit. (360) The claimants argued that the state search warrant, on which probable cause for the forfeiture was based, relied on false information, and that the district court should have conducted a hearing pur​suant to Franks v. Delaware, 438 U.S. 154 (1978). The 1st Circuit rejected the argument, holding that the claimants failed to meet their burden to show a need for such a hearing. They produced only "(1) a demonstrably false affidavit containing hearsay statements, and (2) a low quality tape that tends, on the whole, to confirm, rather than contradict, the truth of [the] detective['s] state​ments." U.S. v. Parcel of Land and Resi​dence Lo​cated Thereon, 896 F.2d 605 (1st Cir. 1990).xe "U.S. v. Parcel of Land and Resi​dence Lo​cated Thereon, 896 F.2d 605 (1st Cir. 1990)."
2nd Circuit says stipulations barred using allega​tions in amended complaint to show probable cause. (360) The government seized a bank's inter​bank account which contained about $7 million. To expedite the return of funds that were not linked to criminal activity, the bank agreed to produce its records regarding the interbank account at the time of the seizure. This agreement was finalized as a stipulation that was signed by the court. The gov​ernment subse​quently used the bank's records as the basis for an amended forfeiture complaint. The 2nd Circuit held that the stipulation barred the govern​ment from using the allegations in the amended complaint to establish probable cause that the entire account was forfeitable. The allegations in the amended complaint derived entirely from the gov​ernment's examination of the interbank records and the stipulation barred the government from using the records to establish probable cause against money not attributable to money orders. Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993).xe "Marine Midland Bank v. U.S., 11 F.3d 1119 (2d Cir. 1993)."
2nd Circuit holds that complaints for seizure of electronic transfer funds were stated with sufficient particularity. (360) The 2nd Circuit held that the in rem com​plaints and their accompanying warrants for the seizure of funds being transferred elec​tronically complied with the particularity re​quirements in the Supple​mental Rules. By naming both the intermediary banks through which the funds were to be transferred and the intended benefi​ciaries of the funds, the complaint described the subject property with "reasonable particularity" as required by Supp. Rule C(2). By recounting the methods that the head of a Colombian drug cartel used to funnel his narcotics proceeds through various New York banks for ultimate deposit in Colombian bank accounts, the complaint stated "the circum​stances from which the claim [arose]" with sufficient particularity for the claimants to "commence an investigation of the facts and frame a responsive pleading," as required by Supp. Rule E(2). U.S. v. Dac​carett, 6 F.3d 37 (2d Cir. 1993). xe "U.S. v. Dac​carett, 6 F.3d 37 (2d Cir. 1993). "
2nd Circuit holds it was error to permit gov​ernment to amend its forfeiture com​plaint to conform to proof at trial. (360) In February, the government filed an action against property partially owned by claimant, seeking forfei​ture based upon drug activity at the prop​erty, which was uncov​ered by a po​lice raid the previous July. Claimant as​serted an innocent owner defense, alleging that she was un​aware of the drug activities. The tape recording of an in​criminating con​versation which took place that February be​tween claimant and a tenant of the property was intro​duced at trial. Over de​fendant's objections, the jury was then in​structed that it could consider defendant's knowledge of il​legal activi​ties as of the date of the February seizure, rather than as of the July raid. The district court granted the gov​ernment's in​formal motion to amend its complaint to con​form to the evidence pursuant to Fed. R. Civ. P. 15(b). The 2nd Circuit reversed. The original com​plaint and answer, and the gov​ernment's opening statement focused entirely on activity prior to the July raid. Only in the government's summation did a theory of forfei​ture based upon drug ac​tivity after July arise. De​fendant was prejudiced by the amendment, since it was not until af​ter the conclusion of the trial that the district court recog​nized the issue. U.S. v. Certain Real Property and Premises, Known as 8890 Noyac Road, 945 F.2d 1252 (2d Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Certain Real Property and Premises, Known as 8890 Noyac Road, 945 F.2d 1252 (2d Cir. 1991)."
4th Circuit affirms denial of claimant’s motion to strike the government’s forfeiture complaint for failing to meet particularity requirement of Rule E(2)(a) is denied. (360) After a traffic stop, police searched the defendant’s vehicle and found a hidden compartment containing $500,000 in cash sealed in plastic bags. The money was seized, and a civil forfeiture complaint alleging the currency to be drug proceeds was filed. The government was granted summary judgment, and the defendant’s motion to strike the complaint was denied. The Fourth Circuit analyzed Supplemental Rule E(2)(a), which requires the complaint to “state the circumstances from which the claim arises with such particularity that the claimant will be able . . to commence an investigation of the facts and to frame a responsive pleading” in light of CAFRA’s change in the burden of proof. The Fourth Circuit adopted the general standard enunciated under Rule E(2)(a) that a complaint must allege sufficient facts to support a reasonable belief that the property is subject to forfeiture, and affirmed the denial of defendant’s motion to strike the complaint. U.S. v. Mondragon, 313 F.3d 862 (4th Cir. 2002).
4th Circuit says failure to file answer waived right to challenge substance of complaint. (360) The govern​ment filed a civil forfeiture action against claimant’s real property. Claimant filed a claim to the property, but failed to file an answer to the complaint. His failure to file an answer constituted a waiver of any challenge to the sufficiency of the allegations of probable cause in the complaint. U.S. v. McMullin, 194 F.3d 1306 (4th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished).

xe "U.S. v. McMullin, 194 F.3d 1306 (4th Cir. 1999) (table) (unpublished)."
5th Circuit finds complaint in compliance with admiralty rules sufficient for issuance of warrant for seizure of property al​leged to be in vi​olation of food and drug laws. (360) The gov​ernment ap​plied to the district court for a warrant to seize property al​leged to be in violation of the Federal Food, Drug, and Cos​metic Act. After the warrant was issued, another judge in the same district court re​scinded the seizure and or​dered the re​turn of the prop​erty. Despite claimant's con​tention that the seizure was based upon inaccu​rate factual informa​tion, the 5th Cir​cuit upheld the seizure, ruling that when a com​plaint which complies with the provi​sions of the admi​ralty rules seeks for​feiture of articles of property alleged to be in violation of the federal food and drug laws, the gov​ernment is entitled to se​cure a warrant and main​tain its seizure on the property until a court hears the mer​its of the conflicting claim. To bal​ance a claimant's due process rights with the interests of public health, a hearing on the merits should be scheduled at the promptest date possible considering the court's emer​gency calendar and the ability of the parties to prepare and present the contro​versy to the court. U.S. v. Pro​plast II, 946 F.2d 422 (5th Cir. 1991).xe "U.S. v. Pro​plast II, 946 F.2d 422 (5th Cir. 1991)."
8th Circuit says forfeiture complaint met particu​larity requirements of Supplemen​tal Rule E(2)(a). (360) The 8th Circuit re​versed the district court's ruling that the gov​ernment's forfeiture complaint un​der 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(6) did not meet the par​ticularity requirements of Rule E(2)(a) of the Sup​plemental Rules for Certain Admi​ralty and Maritime Claims. The government sought to forfeit $150,660 seized from claimant at an Amtrak station. The cir​cumstantial evi​dence indicated the money was drug-related: claimant purchased a one-way ticket with cash; he was carrying a large sum of cash; the bills were old looking and were not bound by bank money wrappers, despite claimant's contention that he had withdrawn the money from a bank; the cur​rency smelled like dry marijuana; and the bank account from which claimant said he withdrew the funds had been closed for over a year and never had a balance greater than $5680. These facts, strongly suggested that the cur​rency was connected with drug activ​ity. Senior Judge Bright dissented. U.S. v. U.S. Cur​rency, In the Amount of $150,660.00, 980 F.2d 1200 (8th Cir. 1992).xe "U.S. v. U.S. Cur​rency, In the Amount of $150,660.00, 980 F.2d 1200 (8th Cir. 1992)."
9th Circuit denies government effort to acquire title by adverse possession after botched forfeiture. (360) The government civilly forfeited a warehouse used by claimant for growing marijuana; however, the property description in the forfeiture complaint omitted a corner of the property that had been separately conveyed to claimant. In the course of selling the property, the government discovered the omis​sion in the property description and filed an action to quiet title. It alleged that it had acquired title to the omitted portion by adverse posses​sion, or in the alternative, that the omitted portion was forfeitable on the same basis as the rest of the property. The Ninth Circuit held the forfeiture claim was barred by the statute of limitations. The court also concluded that the government could not establish adverse posses​sion under any provision of Washington state law. Title to the unforfeited corner remained in the marijuana grower. U.S. v. Spahi, 177 F.3d 748 (9th Cir. 1999).xe "U.S. v. Spahi, 177 F.3d 748 (9th Cir. 1999)."
9th Circuit discusses tax forfeiture dismissed due to lack of approval from Treasury Secretary. (360) The government failed to obtain authorization from the Secretary of the Treasury before filing forfeiture complaints based on tax evasion. When this was brought to the court's attention, the complaints were dismissed pursuant to 26 U.S.C. §7401. The court awarded $1,500 attorneys fees under Rule 11, but refused to award additional attorneys fees under the Equal Access to Justice Act, 28 U.S.C. §2412, because the case was dismissed for lack of subject matter jurisdiction. The 9th Circuit reversed, holding that EAJA attorneys fees could be awarded where, as here, the district court had "potential jurisdiction" but lacked "actual jurisdiction." The case was remanded to reconsider the attorneys fee award. U.S. v. 87 Skyline Terrace, 26 F.3d 923 (9th Cir. 1994).xe "U.S. v. 87 Skyline Terrace, 26 F.3d 923 (9th Cir. 1994)."
10th Circuit says defects in government’s complaint were cured by summary judgment motion. (360) The government sought forfeiture of claimant’s property by filing a complaint under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(6). Claimant urged that the complaint was not sufficiently specific to meet the pleading requirements of Supplemental Rule E(2)(a). The Tenth Circuit agreed that the complaint as originally filed did not meet the rule’s specificity requirements; however, once the stay of proceedings requested by claimant was lifted at the close of claimant’s criminal trial, the government filed a motion for summary judgment with attachments that “clearly and particularly informed [claimant] of the basis of the United States’ claim for forfeiture….” The summary judgment motion “satisfied the requirements of Rule E(2)(a) and negated the need for a more particularized complaint.” U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property Described as Lot 41, Berryhill Farm Estates, 128 F.3d 1386 (10th Cir. 1997).xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property Described as Lot 41, Berryhill Farm Estates, 128 F.3d 1386 (10th Cir. 1997)."
11th Circuit determines forfeiture complaint is stated with sufficient particularity. (360) The 11th Circuit re​jected claimant's argument that the forfeiture complaint against claimant's property was not stated with sufficient particular​ity. The complaint described how, when and where a 10 kilogram cocaine delivery occurred. The complaint named two of the participants, including claimant, referred to a third participant, and described the role each participant played in the narcotics ex​change. Although defendant cited many cases arising under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(6), in these cases the connection between the property and the vi​olation is often indirect and a factual tracing in the complaint is often required to support the probable cause violation. In cases such as this arising under 21 U.S.C. §881(a)(7), the connection between the property and the violation is of​ten direct and clear. U.S. v. Real Property and Residence at 3097 S.W. 111th Av​enue, Miami, Florida, 921 F.2d 1551 (11th Cir. 1991)xe "U.S. v. Real Property and Residence at 3097 S.W. 111th Av​enue, Miami, Florida, 921 F.2d 1551 (11th Cir. 1991).".

Arkansas district court holds that although evidence shows most currency in circulation is tainted with drugs and questions probative value of dog alert, it does not dismiss complaint because of conflicting legal opinions. (360) The claimant sought dismissal and/or summary judgment arguing that the government failed to establish probable cause for forfeiture or a “substantial connection” between the seized money and drug activity. He further alleged that all currency is tainted with illegal drugs. The court stated that prior to the passage of CAFRA, the government had the burden of establishing “probable cause” in the complaint that the property was forfeitable. However, under CAFRA, the burden of proof is “a preponderance of the evidence,” and the government may use evidence gathered after the filing of a complaint for forfeiture to establish that property is subject to forfeiture, but must establish that there was a substantial connection between the property and the offense. CAFRA also states that no complaint may be dismissed on the ground that the government did not have adequate evidence at the time the complaint was filed to establish the forfeitability of the property. Rule G(2)(f) of the Supplemental Rules of Admiralty and Maritime Claims and Asset Forfeiture Actions says the complaint must state sufficiently detailed facts to support a “reasonable belief” that the government will be able to meet its burden of proof at trial. At the time of the filing, the government's allegations must be sufficient to allow the Claimant to commence an investigation and frame a response. The court found that the government’s stated allegations were sufficient, and denied judgment on the pleadings. As for the motion for summary judgment, the only evidence proffered by the government connecting the subject property to an illegal drug transaction was that a drug-sniffing canine was alerted on the package containing the cash, and the “suspicious” circumstances regarding the shipment of the cash. The claimant alleged the cash was payment for a gambling debt owed to him, while the third-party that shipped the package alleged he did so at the request of a client. However, neither the claimant nor the shipper was willing to disclose the identity of the person whose money was shipped. The Claimant cited numerous cases in which the evidentiary value of an alert by a drug-sniffing canine has been called into doubt. For example, expert testimony was offered in other cases suggesting that between 70 and 97 percent of all bills in circulation in this country are contaminated by cocaine, and the Eighth Circuit has concluded that a dog alert is “virtually meaningless” because “an extremely high percentage of all cash in circulation in America today is contaminated with drug-residue.” The claimant thus argued that given the high percentage of contaminated bills in circulation in the United States, the dog's alert does not, standing alone, establish that the subject cash was necessarily involved in a drug transaction. The government contended that the cases cited by the defendant are outdated and that recently courts have accepted more accurate scientific testimony establishing the reliability of a positive dog alert as evidence that bills have been recently contaminated with illegal drugs. The court concluded that it was not the role of the court at that stage in the litigation to resolve these conflicting legal opinions. It considered the drug alert as one factor among several in determining whether, under the totality of the circumstances, the government has met its burden of establishing that a reasonable suspicion exists that the confiscated property was related to an illegal drug transaction. There were many factors for the court to consider in examining the totality of the circumstances, including the use of a third-party to ship a large sum of cash with drug residue from California to Arkansas, the canine drug alert, the chemical presence of drug residue, and the undisclosed identity of the person whose behalf the cash was shipped. For the court to determine the veracity of the claimant's statements that the money was not drug related would require the court to judge the evidence and its weight, which is an impermissible step at summary judgment. While a finder of fact may well determine the government has not met its burden of proving a “substantial connection” between the currency and drug activity, any such determination by the Court is not permissible at this stage in the proceedings. U.S. v. $9,950.00 in U.S. Currency, 2007 WL 3224535 (W.D. Ark. 2007) (October 29, 2007).

California district court holds that under newly enacted Admiralty Supplemental Rule G, in motion to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6), government's complaint need not demonstrate probable cause to believe the seized property was drug proceeds. (360) Drug Task Force officers at Federal Express noticed a brown cardboard box with a handwritten air bill stating that the sender paid $43.95 in cash for standard overnight delivery. A certified narcotic detection canine examined the area containing numerous parcels and made a positive alert that a parcel had the odor of narcotics. The parcel was searched and inside was a sealed computer box containing $50,040.00 divided into 50 individually rubber-banded stacks in two heat-sealed pouches. Officers interviewed Michael Moss, who stated that he sent the claimant Lynch, a realtor, the $50,040 in cash as a down payment for realty and Lynch demanded cash only, so he sent a combination of cash he had in his residence and cash borrowed from two personal credit cards, but he could not support his statements with credit card receipts or documentation of the location of the property. The next day, agents learned that Lynch had received six parcels in a six-month period. Lynch denied knowledge of the parcel and of Michael Moss, and denied that she expected a parcel or that she knew who would have sent her the currency. After consulting with her attorney, she signed a disclaimer of title and interest in the parcel and currency. She then declined to answer any more questions. The claimant moved to dismiss the civil forfeiture complaint pursuant to the failure to establish probable cause. Prior to the adoption of Rule G of the Supplemental Rules for Admiralty or Maritime Claims and Asset Forfeiture Actions, Rule E(2)(a), which governed the sufficiency of complaints in maritime forfeiture actions, also applied to civil forfeitures cases. On December 1, 2006, Rule G was adopted to govern civil forfeiture actions in rem. In an action governed by 18 U.S.C. §983(a)(D), the complaint may not be dismissed on the ground that the government did not have adequate evidence at the time the complaint was filed to establish the forfeitability of the property. The sufficiency of the complaint is governed by Rule G(2). The advisory committee notes state that Rule G(2)(f) carries forward the interpretation of Rule E(2)(a) standard as applied by case law to civil forfeiture actions, and specifically articulate this standard as: “The complaint must state sufficiently detailed facts to support a reasonable belief that the government will be able to meet its burden of proof at trial.” The district court held that this interpretation is in practice similar to the standard articulated in the newly enacted Rule G. Although the claimant asserted that the government's complaint must demonstrate probable cause to believe the seized property was drug proceeds pursuant to the holding of United States v. $191,910.00, 16 F.3d 1051 (9th Cir.1994), that case does not set the standard for post-CAFRA motions to dismiss under Rule 12(b)(6), but only the pre-CAFRA standard for summary judgment; it never stood for the proposition that the government had to demonstrate probable cause at the pleading stage. CAFRA incorporated the protections of the Fourth Amendment by requiring warrants for seizures unless “there is probable cause to believe that the property is subject to forfeiture and the seizure is made pursuant to a lawful arrest or search.” 18 U.S.C. 981(b) (2)(B). Challenges to the legality of the seizure—whether there is probable cause to believe the property is subject to forfeiture at time of seizure—are brought pursuant to a motion to suppress under Rule G(8)(a), not a motion to dismiss. The court then concluded that the complaint stated sufficiently detailed facts to support a reasonable belief that the government will be able to meet its burden of proof at trial, because the totality of the allegations plead therein suggested a connection to drugs. U.S. v. $50,040 in U.S. Currency, 2007 WL 1176631 (N.D. Cal. 2007) (April 20, 2007).

California District Court finds complaint meets particularity requirement of admir​alty rules. (360) Rules C(2) and E(2)(A) of the Supplemental Rules for Certain Maritime Claims, which govern forfeiture actions, require that the government describe with “reasonable particularity” both the property subject to forfeiture and “the circumstances from which the claim arises.” The complaint in this money laundering forfeiture case described the back​ground of the money laundering investiga​tion, including statements by the alleged money launderer that money involved in various transactions was “drug proceeds.” The complaint further alleged that the account in dispute in this case was one of the accounts to which undercover agents and informants were directed to wire transfer such proceeds. The information in the complaint was sufficient to meet the particularity requirements of the rules, and sufficient, if believed, to warrant a jury in finding probable cause to believe the money in the account had the requisite nexus to drug trafficking and money laundering violations. The complaint was properly pled. U.S. v. Funds Representing the Proceeds of Drug Trafficking in the Amount of $75,868.62, 52 F.Supp.2d 1160 (C.D. Cal. 1999).xe "U.S. v. Funds Representing the Proceeds of Drug Trafficking in the Amount of $75,868.62, 52 F.Supp.2d 1160 (C.D. Cal. 1999)."
Florida district court holds that hearsay evidence is admissible in the government’s civil forfeiture case; however, it dismissed one parcel of real property because the complaint failed to plead a substantial connection between this property and any criminal activity. (360, 410, 430) The government sought forfeiture of two properties under the following two statutes as purchased with proceeds of illegal activity and as involved in money laundering, and one property as facilitating drug transactions. The claimants moved to dismiss the complaint claiming it failed to meet the heightened pleading standard under Rule E(2) in that it did not allege facts to establish a substantial nexus between the properties and the alleged illegal activity. The only question before the court at that stage of the proceedings was whether the forfeiture complaint described sufficiently the circumstances that form the basis for the claims so as to enable the claimants, “without moving for a more definite statement, to commence an investigation of the facts and to frame a responsive pleading.” Fed.R.Civ.P. Supp. E(2)(a). The court first noted that the Eleventh Circuit held (on July 31, 2008) that in a civil forfeiture action the government may use hearsay evidence, citing United States v. $291,828.00, 536 F.3d 1234, 1237 (11th Cir. 2008). Editor’s Note: this reasoning appears to be contrary to 18 U.S.C. §983(c)(1), in which the Civil Asset Forfeiture Reform Act raised the government’s burden of proof from probable cause to a preponderance of the evidence; however, it was not clear whether the court was allowing hearsay evidence merely and solely to defend a motion to dismiss. To establish a link between the properties and criminal activity, the complaint and attached affidavit relied extensively on information provided by confidential sources. The government alleged that the confidential sources were “reliable” and that their information was corroborated, i.e., that: (1) two confidential sources stated that a claimant liked to invest his drug proceeds in real estate; (2) the properties were kept in a family members' name; and (3) claimants did not have sufficient legal funds to build single family homes on each property. As to the first property, the government further alleged that the claimant showed the house to a confidential source and stated that he paid cash for it. A second confidential source said he delivered cocaine to that residence and that the claimant was spending at least $70,000 to build a house on the property. The Court found that the specific allegations combined with the general allegations were sufficient to establish a substantial connection between that property and criminal activity. As to the next two properties, the government's only specific allegation was that the claimant paid at least $70,000 to erect a house on each of them, which alone was not sufficient to establish a “substantial” connection with criminal activity as to either property; however, when taken as true and combined with the general allegations, the court found that the government properly pled a substantial nexus. As to the last property, the government made no specific allegations tying it to any criminal activity, and the government conceded that if the cost information provided by the builder was correct, additional funds might not have been needed. Thus, the court found that the government failed to plead a substantial connection between this property and any criminal activity, and granted the motion to dismiss that property. U.S. v. 862 Zana Drive, Ft. Myers, Fla. 33905, 2008 WL 4371354 (M.D.Fla. 2008) (September 22, 2008)
Illinois District Court says probable cause needn't appear on face of forfeiture com​plaint. (360) The government sought civil forfeiture of claimant’s 1993 Ford Thunderbird and money in her bank account, pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §§881(a)(4), (6). The district court held that the civil complaint met the particularity requirement of Supplemental Admiralty Rule E(2)(A) because it provided specifics about the date and location of the seizure, the amount of money seized, the vehicle identification number of the vehicle seized, the involvement of claimant’s spouse in the drug transactions, and claimant’s relationship to her husband and the seized property. The court also held that a complaint need not allege facts sufficient, if believed, to establish probable cause. Instead, it need merely allege “facts tending to show probable cause.” The government must “demon​strate a reasonable belief of guilt supported by more than mere suspicion; prima facie proof is not required.” The following facts alleged in the complaint met this standard: (1) The Thunderbird contained electronically-controlled hidden compartments, and was used by claimant’s spouse as a lookout car in a drug sale; (2) claimants were employed in minimum-wage-type jobs but deposited over $70,000 into the account in four years; and (3) claimant’s husband had been involved in two previous drug forfeitures resolved by default or settlement favorable to the government. U.S. v. One 1993 Ford Thunderbird, 1999 WL 436583 (N.D. Ill. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.).

xe "U.S. v. One 1993 Ford Thunderbird, 1999 WL 436583 (N.D. Ill. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Illinois District Court upholds complaint for forfeiture of vehicle as facially sufficient. (360) Claimant moved to dismiss the government’s forfeiture complaint against his Lexus sport utility vehicle for failure to state a claim. The district court denied the motion, finding that the factual allegations in the verified complaint “support a reasonable belief that the government can establish the probable cause necessary for forfeiture.” In particular, the complaint averred that: (1) Claimant is a convicted drug dealer; (2) Claimant was released in from prison in December 1993 after serving a six-year sentence; (3) Claimant has dealt drugs since his release from prison; (4) Claimant purchased two vehicles for over $81,000 within ten months; (5) Claimant’s tax returns conflict with his statements regarding the source of his income; and (6) Illinois has no record of claimant earning any wages during the past five years. U.S. v. One 1996 Lexus LX 450, 1999 WL 300271 (N.D. Ill 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.), report and recommendation rejected by 1999 WL 617686 (N.D. Ill. 1999).xe "U.S. v. One 1996 Lexus LX 450, 1999 WL 300271 (N.D. Ill 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.), report and recommendation rejected by 1999 WL 617686 (N.D. Ill. 1999)."
Illinois District Court finds forfeiture com​plaint against Hamas funds is legally sufficient. (360) The government filed a forfeiture action against bank accounts and other property held by alleged operatives of Hamas, a Palestinian organization alleged to engage in terrorist activity against the State of Israel. Claimants sought dismissal of the complaint. The district court examined the factual allega​tions in the complaint and held that they established a “reasonable basis” for belief that the funds were transferred into the U.S. in violation of 18 U.S.C. §1956(a)(2). That is, the funds were derived from, or intended to promote the commission of “an offense against a foreign nation involving … murder, kidnapping, robbery, or destruction of property by means of explosive or fire.” The court emphasized that, although a verified complaint for forfeiture in rem is subject to the heightened specificity requirements of Supplemental Admiralty Rule E(2), the standard of review for a complaint prior to the presentation of evidence is “reasonable basis” and not “probable cause.” U.S. v. One 1997 E35 Ford Van, etc., 50 F.Supp.2d 789 (N.D. Ill. 1999).

xe "U.S. v. One 1997 E35 Ford Van, etc., 50 F.Supp.2d 789 (N.D. Ill. 1999)."
Illinois District Court discusses excessive fines claim in currency transaction case. (360) Claimant withdrew and deposited money in various bank accounts in amounts less than $10,000. The government alleged these transactions were structured to avoid cur​rency transaction reporting (CTR) requirements, but did not claim the money was derived from an illegal source, and sought civil forfeiture of the funds under 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(1)(A). Claimant sought dismissal under Rule 12(b)(6), Fed. R. Civ. P. The court found that the government sufficiently alleged knowledge of CTR require​ments and an intent to avoid them by citing the statute and averring that claimant structured his trans​actions to evade CTR requirements. The court also held that the government need not allege in its pleadings that structured funds are criminally derived in order to defeat a claim that their forfeiture is an excessive fine. The court deferred ruling on whether forfeiture of legiti​mately obtained structured funds violates the Excessive Fines Clause until the government shows that the funds were indeed involved in structured trans​actions, and the claimant “subsequently establishes the legal nature of his funds.” U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $170,926.00, 985 F.Supp. 810 (N.D. Ill. 1997).xe "U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $170,926.00, 985 F.Supp. 810 (N.D. Ill. 1997)."
Illinois district court finds complaint sufficient under Rule E(2)(a) despite lack of proof of drug nexus. (360) Claimant was stopped at Midway Airport in Chicago en route from New York to Detroit. When told he would be subject to inspection by a hand-held metal detector, he knocked down security personnel and fled. Upon apprehension, he was found to have nearly $30,000 in cash in a girdle. Claimant, an unemployed former cab driver, told officers the money was not his, but did not know where it came from. He lied about his prior arrest record, and was carrying identification with two aliases. The government filed a civil forfeiture action against the cash, alleging it was drug money. The district court held the facts were sufficient to meet the particularity requirement of Supplemental Rule E(2)(A) because they alleged specific information about the date and location of the seizure, the amount of money seized, and the claimant’s actions on the date of the seizure. The court held the facts in the complaint constituted a reasonable basis to believe the money was subject to forfeiture. U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $29,266.00, 96 F.Supp.2d 806, (N.D. Ill. 2000) xe "U.S. v. Funds in the Amount of $29,266.00, __ F.Supp.2d __, 2000 WL 558602 (N.D. Ill. May 5, 2000) No. 99 C 7888."
New York district court dismisses forfeiture complaint with leave to amend because government failed to show facts supporting reasonable belief that money laundering violations were committed. (360) The government contended that the defendant funds were subject to forfeiture pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §§981(a)(1)(A) and 984 as property involved in a transaction or attempted transaction in violation of §§1956 and 1957, and pursuant to 31 U.S.C. §5317(c) as property involved in a transaction structured to evade reporting requirements in violation of §§5313(a) and 5324(a).  Under §984, the government may forfeit only an amount corresponding to “offenses” occurring up to one year before the date on which the complaint in this action was filed. The claimants moved to dismiss. First, there was no allegation in the complaint supporting a reasonable belief that the claimants, who operate a container manufacturing company, had any connection to the manufacture, importation, sale or distribution of a controlled substance, or any other offense listed in 18 U.S.C. §1961. There was no allegation that the Colombian pesos used to purchase the dollars that were deposited into the account were in any way derived from the commission of a crime. The government pled no facts to support an inference that any of the defendant funds from the account represented the proceeds of some form of unlawful activity that could be traced to identified narcotics or other criminal activity, or that the claimants knew that the funds represented such proceeds.  Further, the complaint did not allege that the claimants knew that their transactions with a peso broker were “designed ... to conceal or disguise the nature, location, the source, the ownership, or the control of the proceeds” of narcotics or money laundering activity, or to avoid a transaction reporting requirement, nor was there any allegation that the peso broker had connections to any narcotics, money laundering, or other criminal activity.  Instead, the government attempted to shroud the absence of facts by reciting general facts about the currency exchange process. As for §1957, the complaint alleged that the broker, acting on behalf of the claimants, deposited checks in value greater than ten thousand dollars into the account.  There were, however, no allegations supporting a reasonable belief that these funds involved criminally derived property and that the claimants were aware of such illegal origin. No facts were asserted to support an inference that the broker himself knowingly had conducted such illegal exchanges. As for section 5317, the pattern of multiple deposits of small amounts of dollars into the account strongly suggested the deliberate evasion of federal reporting requirements under the Bank Secrecy Act, however the complaint was devoid of any allegations that would bring any of the checks deposited into the account within the purview of the anti-structuring law. As a result, they did not qualify as “monetary instruments” as defined by the applicable regulations. There were no allegations that any of the checks at issue were “in bearer form, endorsed without restriction, made out to a fictitious payee ..., or otherwise in such form that title thereto passes upon delivery.” The complaint did not allege that checks were in such a form that title would pass upon delivery, or that there were any transactions involving the cashing of the checks.  Thus, the government’s failure to allege facts that raised a right to relief above the speculative level warranted dismissal (with leave to amend), because the complaint as pled did not sufficiently allege the government's claim. U.S. v. $1,399,313.74 in U.S. Currency, 2008 WL 2605102 (S.D.N.Y. 2008) (June 30, 2008).

New York District Court holds bank need not be a victim for bank fraud forfeiture statute to apply. (360) The government sought civil forfeiture of funds alleged to be the proceeds of an international fraud scheme which were wire transferred to a New York bank account maintained by Merrill Lynch. The action was brought pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(1)(c), which mandates forfeiture of funds traceable to violations of 18 U.S.C. §1343 “affecting a financial institution.” Claimant argued that the statutory language required that a financial institution must itself be a victim of fraud, and that the case should be dismissed because neither Merrill Lynch nor any other financial institution was victimized. The district court declined to interpret the statute so narrowly, holding that Merrill Lynch was “affected” within the meaning of the statute when it was forced to file an interpleader action to resolve competing claims against the money constituting the res of the forfeiture action. U.S. v. Approximately $25,829,681.80 in Funds, 1999 WL 1080370 (S.D. N.Y. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. Approximately $25,829,681.80 in Funds, 1999 WL 1080370 (S.D. N.Y. 1999) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
New York District Court finds complaint sufficiently particular under Rule E(2). (360) Claimant and two others entered the U.S. at Niagara Falls, N.Y. Customs agents searched the car and found roughly $94,000 in U.S. currency hidden in a secret compartment behind the glove box. All three travelers claimed to be going to New York City for a wedding, intending to return to Canada immediately thereafter. When the Customs agents also discovered in the hidden compartment an airline ticket to Ft. Lauderdale for travel the same day in the name of one of the passengers, the passenger admitted to lying about his destination, but claimed no knowledge of the money. A drug dog alerted on the money and an “IONSCAN plasmogram” also detected cocaine residue. Claimant’s story about the source and purpose of the money was also suspicious. The government filed a civil forfeiture complaint pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §881(b) against the funds as drug money. Claimant sought dismissal under Fed. R. Civ. P 12(b)(6) on the ground that the complaint, which recited all the facts related above, was insufficiently particular to meet the stringent pleading requirement of Rule E(2) of the Supplemental Rules for Certain Admiralty and Maritime Claims. The court denied the motion, noting that the complaint need not show probable cause for forfeiture on its face. Rather, the government need only establish a “reasonable belief that [it] will be able to show probable cause for forfeiture at trial.” That standard was met on these facts. U.S. v. $94,010.00 U.S. Currency, 1998 WL 567837 (W.D.N.Y. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. $94,010.00 U.S. Currency, 1998 WL 567837 (W.D.N.Y. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
New York District Court permits amending complaint to add new forfeiture theory. (360) Government agents seized over $146,000 in cash from claimant on the theory that it was connected with narcotics activity. In its civil forfeiture complaint, the government also relied on 21 U.S.C. §881, asserting that the money was drug proceeds. Thereafter, the government sought to amend its complaint to add a money laundering theory of forfeiture under 18 U.S.C. §981(a)(1)(A). Claimant opposed the amend​ment, arguing that since the government seized the money on a drug trafficking theory, it could not later attempt to establish probable cause for the forfeiture on a different ground. The district court held that that government is not required to select a theory of forfeiture when a seizure occurs. Nor will the government "be held to have irrevocably and exclusively elected to pursue the probable cause theory it asserted in its original complaint.” To establish that the government waived a money laundering theory, claimant would have to show that the government had intentionally disavowed it, and there was no such showing here. The court allowed the amendment. U.S. v. United States Currency in the Amount of $146,800, 1997 WL 269583 (E.D. N.Y. 1997) (not reported in F.Supp.).xe "U.S. v. United States Currency in the Amount of $146,800, 1997 WL 269583 (E.D. N.Y. 1997) (not reported in F.Supp.)."
Puerto Rico District Court estops government from changing its stipulated theory of recov​ery. (360) The government sought forfeiture of a sailboat on which an escaped English felon sailed himself to Puerto Rico, on the theory that the vessel had been used to smuggle aliens, in violation of 8 U.S.C. §1324(a)(1)(A)(i). Claim​ant, the felon’s wife, sought to recover the boat. When the government first filed its forfeiture complaint, it was not specific about either the facts or the legal theory upon which it based its for​feiture. After several pre-trial confer​ences, the govern​ment stipulated that it was proceed​ing on the theory that smuggling oneself was a proper ground for forfeiture of the vessel, and that it would not claim that the forfeiture rested on the smuggling of other aliens. Thereafter, the government attempted to disavow its stipulation, alleging that the Assistant U.S. Attorney lacked authority to make such a stipulation. The district court found the stipulation binding (despite considerable authority for the proposi​tion that the government may not be equitably estopped). The court then found that using a boat to enter the U.S. is the crime of illegal entry, 8 U.S.C. §1325, not alien smuggling under 8 U.S.C. §1324, and thus the vessel was not forfeitable. U.S. v. One 48 Ft. White Colored Sailboat Named “Libertine,” 24 F.Supp.2d 174 (D. P.R. 1998).xe "U.S. v. One 48 Ft. White Colored Sailboat Named Libertine, 24 F.Supp.2d 174 (D. P.R. 1998)."
Tennessee District Court finds government complaint sufficient under Admiralty Rule E(2)(a). (360) The government sought civil forfeiture of sixteen pieces of real property alleged to have been used as sites for marijuana grow operations or to have been purchased wholly or in part with drug proceeds. Claimants moved for summary judgment on the ground that the complaint was insufficiently specific to meet the heightened standard of particularity of Supplemental Admiralty Rule E(2)(a). The rule requires that the claimant “be able, without moving for a more definite statement, to commence an investigation of the facts and to frame a responsive pleading.” Although many of the subject properties were acquired before or contemporaneously with the marijuana grow operations that formed the basis of the forfeiture and thus could not have been initially purchased with drug money, the complaint alleged that liens placed on the properties after their purchase had been paid with drug money. The court found allegations to this effect in the complaint sufficient to require denial of the summary judgment motion. U.S. v. One Parcel of Property Located at 2556 Yale Avenue, 20 F.Supp.2d 1212 (W.D. Tenn. 1998).
